beginning at page 19 below lists paragraph numbers and uses the RED color page number at the BOTTOM of each page for ease of reference.

**B5.** Page total number in footer varies from page to page as the document was printed in increments not in a single print session, for the explicit purpose of minimizing the known pattern of document hacking after proofing and before printing, which has occurred in previous printed documents. See also the description of defendant CIA's malign long-term patterns of practice in evidence and document tampering at paragraph 17. The final document contains 1324 printed pages.

## COMPLAINT TABLE OF CONTENTS

PARA	1 6	PAGE
	Plaintiff Evidentiary Exhibits "LPEE" page references)	
	COMPLAINT	
	SYNOPSIS	37
1	Defendants UNITED STATES, ARMY, CIA, DOJ, FBI, Other	
	Government Co-Conspirators Violate First Amendment	
	Establishment Clause Which Guarantees Freedom Of Religion	
2	Inhumane Medical Experiments Secretly Abuse Unwitting US	40
	Persons For Decades To Develop And Test Illegal Bioweapon	
	Violating 18 U.S.C. § 175	
3	Illustration 1: Basic Brain Structures Hijacked During Illegal Medical	42
	Experiments Used For Illegal BRMT Bioweapon Development,	
	Testing, And Operation 18 U.S.C. § 175	
	Illustration 2: Hypothalmus, Pituitary, And Pineal Glands Secrete	43
	Brain Hormones (Brain Biochemical Neurotransmitters) Hijacked By	
	Illegal BRMT Bioweapon For Toxin Effect 18 U.S.C. § 178(2)	
	Illustration 3: Basic Brain Hormones Hijacked By Illegal BRMT	44
	Bioweapon Using Bioweapon Delivery System	
4	Development, Test, And Deployment Progression Of Illegal	44
	BRMT Bioweapon And Bioweapon Delivery System 18 U.S.C.	
	§ 175	
6	FDA Approvals For Antilog Medical Device Tests Prove	47
	Scientific Feasibility of Secret Illegal BRMT Bioweapon	
	Illustration 4: Synchron Brain-Computer Interface Implanted In First	48
	Six US Patients	

8	Title 18 Racketeering Acts And Title 42 Civil Rights Violations Sustain Government Cover-Up	49
9	Defendant CIA Murder of ARMY Contract Biomedical Researcher Frank Olson	49
10	Homicidal Conduct Against Lead Plaintiff's Extended Family Matches Other BRMT Indirect Perpetrator Pattern Evidence	51
	Interline Exhibit 1: Probable September 2011 Illegal BRMT Bioweapon Brain Hijacking Homicide	52
16	Individual Defendant Identifications In 2023-24 Confirm Government Defendants Are Key Perpetrators	56
18	Defendants ARMY, CIA, DOJ Fraudulently Conceal Criminal Conduct Behind Illegal Abuse Of State Secrets Privilege 5 U.S.C. § 301	57
19	Sustained Pattern of Third Amendment and Posse Comitatus Law Violations By Defendants ARMY And DOD 18 U.S.C. § 1385	57
20	Defendant CIA's Illegal BRMT Bioweapons Program Executives Identified In 2023-24 – Breyer, Hopper, Burns, Fauci	59
22	Defendants DOJ. FBI, USMS, And Other Illegal BRMT Bioweapons Program, Rights, And Racketeering Acts Defendants Identified In 2023-24	62
25	Fraudulent Concealment, Willful Blindness, And Official Silence From Defendants DOJ, CIA, ARMY, National Archives	64
30	Table: Constitutional Rights and Racketeering Violations Timeline	71
31	Absence Of Valid Defenses - Constitutional Rights Are Protected As State Secret Privilege Is An Invalid Defense 5 U.S.C. § 301 For An Illegal Bioweapon 18 U.S.C. § 175	77
34	Illegal Cover-Up Benefits Defendants' Corrupt Intent - Plaintiffs' Rights, Religion, Property, Family Are Profoundly Damaged	80
36	Table: Directly Inculpated Senior Government Officials	84
	JURISDICTION AND VENUE	89
38	Subject Matter Jurisdiction	89
39	Personal Jurisdiction	90
40	Venue	91
41	Known Government Conflicts of Interest Requiring Threshold Consideration	94
	PARTIES	99
50	Plaintiffs Load Plaintiff	99
30	Lead Plaintiff	フブ

51	Extreme Difficulty Of Detection - Lead Plaintiff's Injuries Are Representative Of Injuries To The Class Of Plaintiffs	100
55	Other Plaintiffs	103
58	A. Mere Recognition Of BRMT Is Immensely Difficult For Victims	104
59	B. Myriad Challenges To Identify Members Of The Class Of Injured Plaintiffs	108
64	C. Scale Of Research, Development, And Deployment Expenditure Is Vital Clue To Likely Number Of BRMT Victims	110
66	D. Estimated Size Of Plaintiff Class	110
90	Defendants	115
93	A. Specific Technical And Tradecraft Challenges To Undercover Operational Identifications - Police Powers, Intelligence, And Media	116
102	A1. Government Defendants Generally	123
105	Table: Named Defendants Associations And Relationships	127
110	A2. Individual Defendants Generally	133
113	A3. Additional Unknown Defendants Generally	135
114	A4. Police Powers Undercover Defendants' Culpability Must Be Established Through Answers And Discovery	137
120	B. Known Federal Defendants, In Their Official Capacity	137
140	C. Known State and Local Defendants, In Their Official Capacity	149
149	Table: Apparent Cover Entities - Police Powers, Press, Private	156
160	D. Known Entity Defendants, Including Police Powers Cover Operations	159
211	E. Individual Defendants, Including John Does Acting Outside Their Official Capacity In Bad Faith Acts Performed Under Fraudulent Concealment, And John Does	168
226	<i>Table:</i> Unknown Government Agents; Press, Media, Entertainment, And Other Persons Granted Access By Police Powers	183
228	Alternate Search Terms – Named Defendants	185
	NOTICE TO COURT AND DEFENDANTS – CONTINUING OBSTRUCTIONS OF JUSTICE BY DEFENDANT UNITED STATES	186
229	Technically Suppressed Evidence, Hacking, Harassing, And Tampering Which Do Obstruct Complete Complaint Presentation	186
230	Evidence Labeling Practices - Change Forced By Defendant UNITED STATES Technical Hack	187
	Table: LPEEV65 Documents Index - Beginning February 2024, LPEEV65 page references are substituted for Bates numbering of specific evidence. This evidence labeling change	188

	was forced by a still continuing technical hack of the Adobe Acrobat Pro application by defendant UNITED STATES.	
250	VIOLATIONS OF LAW AND CONFLICTS OF LAW	189
251	Summary of Laws and Treaties Violated by United States and Co- Conspirators	189
254	Points of Law, Case Law Precedents, And Conflicts of Law Favor Plaintiffs	192
255	A. Limits On Sovereign Immunity Imposed By Congress	193
259	B. Limits On Religious Discrimination Imposed By Congress And Case Law Precedents	195
260	C. Limits On State Secrets Privilege Imposed By Congress And Case Law Precedents	197
	<i>Interline Exhibit 2:</i> Administrative Procedures Act Limitations – State Secrets	199
267	D. Limits On Absolute And Qualified Individual State Secrets Immunity Imposed By Congress And Case Law Precedents	203
272	E. Absolute And Qualified Immunity Precedents In Case Law Answered By Congressional Intent In November 1988 At 28 U.S.C. § 2679(b)(2)	207
277	F. Bivens Special Factors and Alternative Remedy Immunity Claims Are Defeated By Facts And By Defendant UNITED STATES Failures To Act	215
307	G. Application Of Equitable Tolling In Fraudulent Concealment – Unequal Administration Of Justice	232
314	H. Equitable Tolling - Civil RICO Time Bars Are Equitably Tolled By Defendants' Systematic Fraudulent Concealments	235
317	H1. Diligent Pursuit of Claims by Lead Plaintiff In The Face Of Long-Running Fraudulent Concealment by Defendants	237
322	I. Constitutional Issues - Ratified International Treaties Supersede Existing US Law And Supersede Defendant UNITED STATES' Neglect To Prevent	250
322	I1. Defendant UNITED STATES' Noncompliance With Law - Bioweapons Treaty Prohibits ALL Bioweapons And Bioweapon Development From March 1975	250
328	I2. Conflict Of Law - Senate Ratification Determined Treaty Is NOT Self-Executing, <i>Torture Treaty</i> Requires Civil Right Of Action	254
331	J. Denton and Nietzke Mandate Factual Development Of Novel Claims, For In Forma Pauperis Pro Se Litigation, Even If Imperfectly Pled	255
334	K. Congressional Intent - Title 18 RICO Statutes, Title 28 Judicial Proceedings	257
	K1. Defendant Agencies, Individuals, and <i>Mens Rea</i> – Select Congressional Findings Contemporaneous With Events In This	258

	Litigation	
342	L. RICO Associated-In-Fact Enterprise	260

## **CASE LAW CITATIONS KEY**

	Paragraph
Marbury v. Madison, 1 Cranch 137, 163, 2 L. Ed. 60 (1803)	277
Bradley v. Fisher, 13 Wall. 335, 80 U. S. 351 (1871)	272
United States v. Lee, 106 U. S. 220 (1882)	283
The Western Maid, 257 U.S. 419 (1922)	277
Bemis Bros. Bag Co. v. United States, 289 U.S. 28 (1933)	277
Jacobs v. United States, 290 U. S. 13, 290 U. S. 16 (1933)	279
Bell v. Hood, 327 U.S. 678 (1946)	277, 282
United States v. Standard Oil Co., 332 U. S. 301, 332 U. S. 311 (1947)	279
US v. Karl Brant et al, Nuremberg trail record, November 21, 1946 and August 20, 1947	358
United States v. Reynolds, 345 U.S. 1 (1953)	24, 26a, 32, 66, 260, 262, 270, 271, 284, 315, 319, 351D, 396, 599B(v), 914
United States v. Gilman, 347 U. S. 507 (1954)	279
Wheeldin v. Wheeler, 373 U. S. 647 (1963)	279
J. I. Case Co. v. Borak, 377 U. S. 426, 377 U. S. 433 (1964)	279
Bivens v. Six Unknown Fed. Narcotics Agents, 403 U.S. 388 (1971)	91, 260, 277-285, 288-296
Gravel v. United States, 408 U. S. 606, 408 U. S. 615 (1972)	283
Doe v. McMillan, 412 U. S. 306, 412 U. S. 320 (1973)	267A, 272B, 283
Scheuer v. Rhodes, 416 U. S. 232 (1974)	272C
Wood v. Strickland, 420 U. S. 308, 420 U. S. 322 (1975)	273
Imbler v. Pachtman, 424 U.S. 409 (1976)	36, 276, 276B
Hampton v. Mow Sun Wong, 426 U. S. 88 (1976)	283
Stump v. Sparkman, 435 U.S. 349 (1978)	272
Butz v. Economou, 438 U. S. 478 (1978)	272C, 274, 278, 283
Davis v. Passman, 442 U. S. 228, 442 U. S. 245 (1979)	278, 282, 283
<i>United States v. Kubrick</i> , 444 U.S. 111, 100 S. Ct. 352, 62 L.Ed.2d 259 (1979)	316
Carlson v. Green, 446 U. S. 14 (1980)	278, 291
Gomez v. Toledo, 446 U. S. 635 (1980)	273
Boag v. MacDougall, 454 U. S. 364 (1982)	331
<i>Nixon v. Fitzgerald</i> , 457 U. S. 731 (1982)	260, 272C

Harlow v. Fitzgerald, 457 U.S. 800 (1982)	91, 272C, 273, 320, 352, 914
Chappell v. Wallace, 462 U.S. 296 (1983)	290, 291
Bush v. Lucas, 462 U.S. 367 (1983)	290, 291
United States v. Stanley, 483 U.S. 669 (1987)	290, 291
Erwin v. United States 484 US 292 (1988)	267A, 272B
Schweiker v. Chilicky, 487 U.S. 412 (1988)	290, 291
United States v. Kozminski, 487 U.S. 931 (1988)	809, 820
Neitzke v. Williams, 490 U.S. 319 (1989)	327, 331, 599Н
Denton v. Hernandez, 504 U.S. 25 (1992)	327, 331
FDIC v. Meyer, 510 U.S. 471 (1994)	290, 291
Klehr v. A. O. Smith Corp., 521 U.S. 179 (1997)	316d
Rotella v. Wood, 528 U.S. 549 (2000)	236, 315-317, 583
Correctional Services Corp. v. Malesko, 534 U.S. 61 (2001)	290, 291
Wilkie v. Robbins, 551 U.S. 537 (2007)	290, 291
Hui v. Castaneda, 559 U.S. 799 (2010)	284, 289, 290, 291, 293
Minneci v. Pollard, 565 U.S. 118 (2012)	290, 291
Lozano v. Montoya Alvarez, 572 U.S. 1 (2014).	316f
Ziglar v. Abbasi, 582 U. S (2017)	290, 291
Hernández v. Mesa, 589 U. S (2020)	290, 291
Egbert v. Boule, 596 U.S. 482 (2022)	290, 297
Boechler v. Commissioner, 596 U. S, (2022)	316
Arellano v. McDonough, 598 U.S (2023)	316f

## **COMPLAINT TABLE OF CONTENTS (continues)**

PARA	FACTS	PAGE
	FACTS – GENERAL ALLEGATIONS	265
350	Five Basic Illegal Patterns of Practice – Illegal Bioweapon Development,	265
	Racketeering Conspiracy, Direct Threats to Life, Involuntary Servitude,	
	Fraudulent Concealment And Willful Blindness	
357	1. First, Illegal BRMT Bioweapon Development and Deployment	270
	Interline Exhibit 3: Defendant CIA's Failed MKUltra Mind Control	272
	Program, Later Replaced By Illegal BRMT Bioweapon And Bioweapon	
	Delivery System	
359	Precursor Events: Illegal CIA and ARMY Experiments Use Nazi	273
	Dachau Concentration Camp Doctors and Illegal Drugs on US	
	Persons	
364	CIA And ARMY Conduct Illegal Medical Experiments, Develop	275
	Prohibited Bioweapon By Medically Abusing American Civilians	
	As Human Subjects	

369	Basic Human Brain Functions Are Commanded by Illegal BRMT External Hijacking	277
380	Illegal BRMT Bioweapon Operates Like Other Remote Offensive Weapon Systems	283
400	2. Second, Racketeering Associated-In-Fact Enterprise Crimes Cover Illegal BRMT Development, Illegal Domestic Spying, And International Commercial Cover Espionage	293
403	Historical Federal Police Powers Patterns Of Institutional Criminal Conduct	293
409	Lead Plaintiff's Family Quaker Religious Origins And This Class Of Plaintiffs	293
410	Religion Based Targeted Federal Government Abuse Of American Families Across Generations	296
414	Lead Plaintiff First Human Trafficked As Collateral To Parental Employment Human Trafficking	298
417	CIA And Army Human Traffick Lead Plaintiff For Illegal Human Medical Experimentation As A Minor Child Beginning At Age 12	300
419	Lead Plaintiff Extensively And Repeatedly Human Trafficked As An Adult	303
425	Illegal Human Trafficking In Involuntary Servitude: Lead Plaintiff's Professional Life – Programmed Employment, Unemployment, Enterprise Wrecking 1979-2002	307
462	Illegal Human Trafficking In Involuntary Servitude: Lead Plaintiff's Professional Life– Programmed Employment, Unemployment, Enterprise Wrecking, Homelessness 2002-2008	329
465	Excerpt: ROSENBERG (FBI, as William Drumm) Signed ESTABLISH Offer Letter - LPEE pages 797-798	332
471	Illegal Human Trafficking In Involuntary Servitude: Lead Plaintiff's Professional Life– Since ESTABLISH (FBI, ROSENBERG) Termination 2008-2024	335
	Interline Exhibit 4: Winnett – FBI, Other Defendant Interferences In Interstate Commerce	340
	Interline Exhibit 5: Winnett Interstate Commerce Interferences - "Produce Consultant Crossgrove" Defendant MARICOPA SHERIFF ARPAIO, officially and individually	343
	Interline Exhibit 6: \$100,000 From Fraudulent Investor "DEAN T. SMITH" (FBI)	344
	Interline Exhibit 7: Fraudulent Financings: ADAMSON Brothers (FBI) Fraudulent Private Placement Memorandum and SEC S-1 Consume \$40,000, Raise \$0	345
	Interline Exhibit 8: KROGER, DOMINICK Corporate Email Accounts Hide True Identities of Defendant Personnel And Entities	346
	Interline Exhibit 9: WALMART Winnett Produce Supply Contract Meeting at Bentonville, AR Home Office With McCormick (FBI)	347

	Interline Exhibit 10: Winnett Cattle Company Sales Contract Signed With WALMART (China) Investment Co., Ltd. – Later Cancelled	34
	Interline Exhibit 11: Lead Plaintiff Sued Individually in Federal Court For Alleged Misuse of Funds Provided By Fraudulent Investor "Dean T. Smith" (FBI)	35
	Interline Exhibit 12: Lead Plaintiff Starts New Enterprise In 2020 - Sheldon Beef	35
490	Illegal Human Trafficking In Involuntary Servitude: Lead Plaintiff's Personal Life – Continuous Manipulations, Episodic Destruction, Fraudulent Relationships, Sex Sting Entrapment Attempts	35
510	Illegal Human Trafficking In Involuntary Servitude: Lead Plaintiff's Personal Finances and Assets Repeatedly Subjected to Forced Liquidation By Defendant UNITED STATES, Using Relationship, Employment, And Private Enterprises Sabotage	36
	Interline Exhibit 13: Redmond Residence – Added Rear Landscaping 14,000 Square Feet, Added In-ground Sprinklers Front and Rear Covering 28,000 Square Feet, Renovated Front Planting Beds	36
	Interline Exhibit 14: Kirkland Residence - Rebuilt and Added 60% Square Footage Enlargement	36
516	"National Security" Pretexting of Lead Plaintiff by Defendant UNITED STATES Accelerated After 9/11 Attack	37
517	Defendants Malicious Acts Against Lead Plaintiff Extend to Torturous Acts	37
521	Defendants Malicious Acts Against Lead Plaintiff AGAIN Extend to Torturous Acts	37
526	Lead Plaintiff's Personal Volunteer Work Sabotaged By UNITED STATES	37
535	3. Third, Indirect Threats, Lethality Attempts, And Human Trafficking Are Used To Coerce And Indirectly Destroy Evidence Of Past Crimes	37
	Interline Exhibit 15: Indirect Verbal Threat and Subsequent Lethality Events	38
	IE 15A. First, An Indirect Verbal Threat	38
	IE 15B. Second, A Mass Casualty Attempt On A MTA Hudson Line Express Train	38
	IE 15C: Third, A BRMT Assault in Morningside Park, NYC follows	38
	IE 15D. Fourth, A Vehicle Rundown Sequence In New York City and North Bergen, NJ	38
	IE 15E. Fifth, A Report Is Made, Met As Always With No	39
	Response, Only Official Silence	

541	Table: Key Contacts- Involuntary Servitude Of Lead Plaintiff	392
	5. Fifth, Fraudulent Concealment And Willful Blindness Sustain Obstruction Of Justice	393
550	Fraudulent Concealment	393
	Interline Exhibit 16: August 2021 58 <sup>th</sup> Anniversary MLK "I Have A Dream" Speech Lincoln Memorial Permit Allegedly Cancelled by Organizer – FALSE FOIA Response to Cover First Amendment Violation	398
555	Fraudulent Concealment - NYPD and FBI Coordinate Cover-Up of Human Trafficking, Pre-Texted Investigations	399
	Interline Exhibit 17: Defendants NYPD and FBI Coordinate September 2021 Fraudulent Concealment	409
	<i>Interline Exhibit 18:</i> Defendant FBI Sends Official Liar Letter in September 2021 Coordinated Fraudulent Concealment	411
	Interline Exhibit 19: Defendant Department of Justice Assistant Inspector General Investigations Division Declines Investigation of Defendant FBI, Then Ignores Lead Plaintiff's Follow-Up Letter	413
580	Willful Blindness - Forty Complaint Letters To US Attorney Ignored	420
593	FACTS – 110 ILLEGAL PATTERN ACTS, VIOLATIONS, AND INJURIES	422
	AL SECURITY PRETEXTING, FRAUDS, AND ENTANGLEMENTS eries offenses)	
600	1	447
601	NSEC-2 National Security Frauds: Human Trafficking, Forced Labor, Peonage, Inculpating Allied Intelligence Services - CSIS, RCMP, MI-6, MI-5, London Metropolitan Police, UK 1990-1994	456
602	NSEC-3 National Security Frauds: Involuntary Servitude, Forced Labor, Deliberate Entanglements To Violate Rights - Nuclear and Space Deliberate Entanglements, 9/11 Attack, Domestic Sabotage Campaign 1996-2009	460
603	NSEC-4 National Security Frauds: Human Trafficking, Forced Labor, Violations of Rights – Mossad, MI-6, MI-5, London Metropolitan Police, UK 2007	485
	L HUMAN EXPERIMENTATION - BRMT BRAIN HIJACKING ABUS UBCOUNT OFFENSES)	ES
Biologica	l and Medical Invasions - Torture	
604	HEXP-1 Illegal Human Experimentation: Biological and Medical Invasions - BRMT Induced Torture, Washington State 2003	489
605	HEXP-2 Illegal Human Experimentation: BRMT Induced Torture And Psychological Operations, Massachusetts 2006-2007	495
606	HEXP-3 Illegal Human Experimentation: Torture And Psychological Operations, New Jersey 2008-2011	499

607	HEXP-4 Illegal Human Experimentation: BRMT Induced Emotional Swings And Short Cycle Torture Sequences Through 2023	509
Orchestra	tted Personal and Intimate Relationships	
608	HEXP-5 Illegal Human Experimentation: Personal and Intimate Relationships - Orchestrated Romantic Interests Using BRMT Oxytocin Hormone Brain Hijacking, Generally	515
609	HEXP-6 Illegal Human Experimentation: Personal and Intimate Relationships - Orchestrated BRMT and Other Interference in Marital Community With First Spouse, Lynne 1980-1988	521
610	HEXP-7 Illegal Human Experimentation: Personal and Intimate Relationships - Orchestrated BRMT and Other Interference in Fraudulent Marital Community With Second Spouse, Jeanette 1988-2005	525
611	HEXP-8 Illegal Human Experimentation: Personal and Intimate Relationships - Orchestrated Romantic Interests, Induced Fraudulent Relationship, Marinka 2008	531
612	HEXP-9 Illegal Human Experimentation: Personal and Intimate Relationships - Orchestrated Romantic Interests, Induced Fraudulent Relationship, Laura 2014-2018	539
613	HEXP-10 Illegal Human Experimentation: Personal and Intimate Relationships - Orchestrated Romantic Interests, Induced Fraudulent Relationship, Gia 2019-2021	544
Biologica	l and Medical Invasions – Personal Humiliation, Endangerment, Illness	
614	HEXP-11 Illegal Human Experimentation: Biological and Medical Invasions - Orchestrated Romantic Interests, BRMT Induced Erectile Dysfunction 2005, 2008, 2020-2021	547
615	HEXP-12 Illegal Human Experimentation: Biological and Medical Invasions - BRMT Orchestrated Personal Movements and Activities	549
616	HEXP-13 Illegal Human Experimentation: Biological and Medical Invasions - Reckless Endangerment Through BRMT Induced Defamation	553
617	HEXP-14 Illegal Human Experimentation: Biological and Medical Invasions - BRMT Induced Reactions, Symptoms, and Illnesses	557
618	HEXP-15 Illegal Human Experimentation: Biological and Medical Invasions - BRMT Forced Public Urination Sequence, 2022	561
619	HEXP-16 Illegal Human Experimentation: Biological and Medical Invasions - BRMT Public Flash Temper Hijacking, 2023	563
620	HEXP-17 Illegal Human Experimentation: Biological and Medical Invasions – Food Borne Illnesses 2008-2010, 2018-2023	566
<b>OFFENS</b>		NT T
	ents, Illegal Searches and Willful Blindness	
621	<i>RGTS-1 Rights Violations</i> : Entrapment and Incrimination Attempts, Stevens Pass 1980s	569

622	RGTS-2 Rights Violations: Entrapment and Incrimination Attempts, Money Laundering - Alliance Nominee Cash Bank Deposit 1990, Akoto Structured Payments 2016-2017	573
623	RGTS-3 Rights Violations: Entrapment and Incrimination Attempts – FBI/RCMP VSE Pink Sheet Probe 1992-1993	578
624	RGTS-4 Rights Violations: Entrapment and Incrimination Attempts – FBI Sole Source, CFO Search, Tax Filings, Ironwood 2018-2023	583
625	RGTS-5 Rights Violations: Bad Faith Acts – Illegal Searches, Hacking, and Harassing, Oregon Interstate Commerce Trip 2021	588
626	RGTS-6 Rights Violations: Bad Faith Acts – Federal Police Powers Abuses of Legal Processes 1990 to present	592
627	RGTS-7 Rights Violations: Bad Faith Acts – Federal Police Powers Abuses of Legal Processes Forced Personal Bankruptcy 1993	605
628	RGTS-8 Rights Violations: Bad Faith Acts – Willful Blindness - US Attorney Offices, DOJ Headquarters 2005, 2021-2023	608
629	RGTS-9 Rights Violations: Bad Faith Acts – Illegal General Searches, Continual Monitoring 1968 to present	611
630	RGTS-10 Rights Violations: Bad Faith Acts – Privacy and Quiet Enjoyment	614
631	RGTS-11 Rights Violations: Bad Faith Acts – Biological and Medical Invasions, Access to Ethical Basic Health Care	617
Direct In	terferences in Personal and Intimate Relationships	
632	RGTS-12 Rights Violations: Personal and Intimate Relationships - Orchestrated Romantic Interests, Arranged In-person Contacts	619
633	RGTS-13 Rights Violations: Personal and Intimate Relationships – Blocked and Spoofed Access to Dating Sites 2004-2005, 2007-2008, 2011-2014, 2018 to present	622
634	RGTS-14 Rights Violations: Personal and Intimate Relationships – Orchestrated Romantic Interests, Fraudulent Dates 2004-2005, 2008, 2019-2020	624
Hacking,	Harassment, Disinformation, Abuse of Official Records	
635	RGTS-15 Rights Violations: Illegal Searches, Hacking, and Harassing, Computer Technology	628
636	RGTS-16 Rights Violations: Blocking Information Access and Supplying Deliberate Disinformation	630
637	RGTS-17 Rights Violations: Misuse of Official Records and Mispersonation, Dubai 2015	632
RACKE	ΓEERING – (RICO SUBCOUNT OFFENSES)	
Racketee	ring - Thefts and Takings Targeted at Personal Assets	
638	RICO Statute: Congressional Intent PL 91-452 (RICO) October 1970 "shall be liberally construed to effectuate its remedial purposes."	635
639	RICO-1 Racketeering Violations: Involuntary Servitude, Forced Labor, Human Trafficking, Entrapment Attempts and Entanglements –	636

	Obstructing Market Rate Private Employment and Interstate Commerce From Deloitte (1979) through Establish (2008)	
640	RICO-2 Racketeering Violations: Theft and Takings - Financial Resources, Obstructing Market Rate Private Employment 1986 to present	645
641	RICO-3 Racketeering Violations: Theft and Takings - Financial Resources, Thefts of Compensation PAN 1993-1994, CNA 2002, Establish 2008	647
642	RICO-4 Racketeering Violations: Theft and Takings - Financial Resources, Thefts of Labor And Materials, Cliffside Park Apartment Renovations 2008	651
643	RICO-5 Racketeering Violations: Theft and Takings - Financial Resources, Deprivation of Benefits, Kidnapping, and Involuntary Commitment 2008-2011	654
644	<i>RICO-6 Racketeering Violations:</i> Theft and Takings - Financial Resources, Forced Labor Imposed Litigation Expenses 1993-2022	661
645	RICO-7 Racketeering Violations: Theft and Takings - Financial Resources, Shadow Banking System Thefts And Manipulations	667
Racketeer	ring – Personal Color of Law Entrapment Attempts	
646	RICO-8 Racketeering Violations: Theft and Takings - Credit and Credit Access Hacks	669
647	RICO-9 Racketeering Violations: Illegal Searches, Hacking, and Harassing—Tax Software Hack EITC Entrapment Attempt 2021, 2022	672
648	RICO-10 Racketeering Violations: SOLE SOURCE Fraudulent Financing with Ironwood Tax Loss Self-Exculpatory Offset Attempt 2018-2023	674
Racketee	ring – Targeting Small Business and Enterprise	
Racketeer	ring - Thefts and Takings	
649	RICO-11 Racketeering Violations: Deprivation Of SBA Government Bonding Benefits, UT Bonding Fraud 1990-1993	680
650	RICO-12 Racketeering Violations: Theft Of Receivables, Check Frauds 1990 To Present	684
Racketeer	ring - Fraudulent Financings	
651	RICO-13 Racketeering Violations: Money Laundering - Alliance Nominee Cash Bank Deposit 1990	688
652	RICO-14 Racketeering Violations: Factoring Frauds – Pacific Financial Services 1992-1993, PAN Environmental Services 1993-1994	691
653	<i>RICO-15 Racketeering Violations:</i> Fraudulent Financial Services – Ex-CIA Northern Africa Case Officer 1992-1995 Alliance	695
654	RICO-16 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Financial Services – Ex-CIA Latin America Case Officer 2013-2015	700
655	RICO-17 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Financings and Loans - NYC Broker/Investor 2011-2017	703
656	RICO-18 Racketeering Violations: BRMT Assisted Check Fraud Entrapment Attempt – Top US Financial Institution 2014-2015	707

657	RICO-19 Racketeering Violations: False Personation – NYC Forbes 200 Captive Corporate Investment Firm 2013-2017	712
658	RICO-20 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Investor Personation - Investments and Loans 2015-2019	714
659	RICO-21 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Investor Personation and Investments 2015-2020	719
660	RICO-22 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Financings – Private Placement and Public IPO 2015-2017	722
661	RICO-23 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Financings, International CFIUS Pretexting 2015	725
662	RICO-24 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Financing Fees Supporting Fraudulent Sales Opportunities 2018	729
663	RICO-25 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Financing Fees 2018	731
664	RICO-26 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Financial Services – Domestic Debt Broker 2018	732
665	RICO-27 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Financial Services - International Debt Broker 2015-2016	734
666	RICO-28 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Financial Services – Mid- Market Investment Bank 2016-2017	736
667	RICO-29 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Financial Services - International Financial Services Institution 2016-2017	738
668	RICO-30 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Financial Services – Wall Street and Los Angeles Investment Banks 2015-2021	740
669	RICO-31 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Financings and Representation, Online Referral Services 2015-2018	750
670	RICO-32 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Financings and Financial Representation, Fraudulent Solicited Responses 1986 to 2022	753
671	RICO-33 Racketeering Violations: Commercial Frauds: Fraudulent Financings and Litigation - AUCTUS v. CORNHUSKER 2019	774
672	<i>RICO-34 Racketeering Violations:</i> Fraudulent Financings, Online Platform 2021	778
Racketeer	ring – Fraudulent Sales Leads	
673	RICO-35 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Sales Leads 2002-2004	779
674	RICO-36 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Sales Lead Solicitation Services 2021	781
675	RICO-37 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Sales Lead Solicitation Services 2021	783
676	RICO-38 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Sales Lead Development Services 2017	784
677	RICO-39 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Sales Lead Development Services 2017	786

678	RICO-40 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Sales Opportunities, International 2020-2021	787
679	RICO-41 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Sales Opportunities, Domestic 1983-2022	791
680	RICO-42 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Sales And Marketing Representation 2019-2021	799
Racketeer	ring – Dishonest Professional Services	
681	RICO-43 Dishonest professional services – Accounting Compilation And Review 1993, 2021	803
682	RICO-44 Racketeering Violations: Dishonest Professional Services, Web 2021-2022	806
683	RICO-45 Racketeering Violations: Dishonest Professional Services, Legal 1986-2005	808
684	RICO-46 42 Racketeering Violations: Dishonest Professional Services, Legal 2014-2021	813
685	RICO-47 Racketeering Violations: Dishonest Professional Services, MARICOPA SHERIFF, ARPAIO as Consultant 2014-2017	816
686	RICO-48 Racketeering Violations: Dishonest Professional Services, Employees, Recruiters, Various Positions 1986-2022	826
687	RICO-49 Racketeering Violations: Dishonest Professional Services, Employees, Recruiters, Logistics 2015-2021	831
688	RICO-50 Racketeering Violations: Dishonest Professional Services, Employees, Sales	834
689	RICO-51 Racketeering Violations: Dishonest Professional Services, Employees, CFO and Controller	836
690	RICO-52 Racketeering Violations: Dishonest Professional Services, Employees, Controller 2018	840
Racketeeri	ing – Fraudulent Production Asset Sales	
691	RICO-53 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Production Asset Purchase Options, Professional Services 2015-2021	841
692	RICO-54 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Production Asset Purchase Options, AZ 2015-2017	850
693	RICO-55 Racketeering Violations: Fraudulent Production Asset Purchase Options, OR, ID, TX 2015-2021	854
LETHAI	LITY ATTEMPTS (LETHL SUBCOUNT OFFENSES)	
694	<i>LETHL-1 Lethality Attempts</i> : British Columbia Sea to Sky Highway BRMT Melatonin Overdose – mid 1980s	859
695	LETHL-2 Lethality Attempts: Washington State BRMT Induced Falls, 1990-2005	863
696	LETHL-3 Lethality Attempts: Washington State BRMT Induced Suicide Ideation 2003-2005	864
697	LETHL-4 Lethality Attempts: Inciting Public Vigilantism, 2004-2023	866

698	LETHL-5 Lethality Attempts: New Jersey BRMT Induced Suicide Ideation 2008-2010	870
699	LETHL-6 Lethality Attempts: New Jersey Cliffside Park BRMT Falls 2008-2010	871
700	LETHL-7 Lethality Attempts: BRMT Staircase Falls and Attempts in New Jersey and New York 2008-2022	873
701	LETHL-8 Lethality Attempts: New Jersey, Hackensack, BRMT Fall, 2017	875
702	LETHL-9 Lethality Attempts: California, BRMT Induced Extreme Eye Watering, 2017	876
703	LETHL-10 Lethality Attempts: New Jersey, Edgewater Bedroom BRMT Falls, 2019	879
704	LETHL-11 Lethality Attempts: Website Hacks to Eliminate or Delay Covid Vaccination, 2020	880
705	LETHL-12 Lethality Attempts: New Jersey Edgewater BRMT Falls, 2021-2022	882
706	LETHL-13 Lethality Attempts: New Jersey North Bergen Hospital Fall, 2021	884
707	LETHL-14 Lethality Attempts: New York Metro North Mass Casualty Attempt, 2022	886
708	LETHL-15 Lethality Attempts: New York Morningside Park BRMT Fall, 2022	888
709	LETHL-16 Lethality Attempts: New York New Jersey North Bergen Vehicle Rundown Sequence, 2022	890
710	LETHL-17 Lethality Attempts: Programmed Health Collapse, 2023	892
712	Key Illegal BRMT Program State And Local Government Co- Conspirators' Relationships To Federal Defendants	
716	A. Defendant FWSD - Federal Way School District	898
718	B. Defendant WSU – Washington State University	900
728	C. Defendant WASH - State of Washington	905
740	D. Defendant KCSD – King County Sheriff's Department	909
760	E. Summary – Lead Plaintiff's Relationships With Federal, State And Local Governmental Defendants	916
762	Summary Table	917
766	State and Local Government Co-Conspirator Employee Crossover Employment - Adverse Impacts On Lead Plaintiff and Other Class Members	925
767	Entities With Known Embedded Agent Which Employed Class Members	927
771	Other Lead Plaintiff Related Class Members' Involuntary Servitude - Employment Patterns	929
771	A. First Spouse Lynne's Employment Pattern	929
772	B. Second Spouse Jeanette's Employment Pattern	930
774	C. Father Don's Employment Pattern	931
777	D. Uncle Bruce's Employment Pattern	933

779	E. Maternal Grandparents' Employment Pattern	934
781	F. Other Class Member Employment Patterns Subject to Discovery	935
785	FIFTY-FOUR CLAIMS FOR RELIEF	936
798	Table: Constitutional Rights Violations By Claim For Relief	944
799	Table: Named Defendants By Claim For Relief	947
800	Legally Responsive Answers Requirements	967
801	Bioweapons and Bioweapons Delivery Systems Prohibited	968
802	Terrorism - Violent Crimes in Aid of Racketeering Enterprises	979
803	Murder	982
804	Attempted Murder	991
805	Conspiracy To Murder	994
806	Manslaughter	1032
807	Attempted Manslaughter	1034
808	Kidnapping	1037
809	Human Trafficking	1044
810	Torture – Mental and Physical Abuse	1054
811	Conspiracy to Torture	1060
812	Assault	1063
813	Aggravated Battery	1064
814	Soliciting Crime Of Violence	1066
815	Interference With Interstate Commerce By Threats Or Violence	1069
816	Tampering With Witness	1071
817	Tampering With Witness - Evidence	1074
818	Retaliating Against Witness	1077
819	Tampering With Consumer Products	1079
820	Involuntary Servitude	1081
821	Peonage	1100
822	Forced Labor	1106
823	Sexual Abuse	1109
824	Frauds - Mail	1111
825	Frauds – Wire	1123
826	Frauds – Computer Access Devices	1126
827	Fraud And Related Activity – Computers	1130
828	Attempts and Conspiracy - Frauds By Mail, Wire, Computer	1134
829	Scheme To Defraud Of Honest Services - Mail, Wire, Computer	1139
830	Property Rights Of Citizens - Illegal Takings	1143
831	Racketeering - Monetary Benefit From Unlawful Activity	1152
832	Interstate And Foreign Travel Or Transportation For Racketeering Purposes	1164

833	Free Exercise Of Religion	1168
834	Posse Comitatus - Use Of Military To Violate Constitutional Rights	1176
835	Involuntary Servitude	1180
836	Intentional Discrimination in Employment	1184
837	Peonage Abolished	1189
838	Conspiracy Against Rights	1195
839	Deprivation of Rights- Equal Protection	1198
840	Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law	1204
841	Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law - Anti-Terrorist Forfeiture Protection	1207
842	Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law - Searches and Warrants	1224
843	Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law - Searches Without Warrant	1225
844	False Information and Hoaxes	1228
845	Neglect To Protect - Failure To Protect	1233
846	Neglect To Protect - Failure To Supervise	1242
847	Neglect To Protect - Failure To Train	1246
848	Neglect To Protect - Misprison of Felony	1250
849	Neglect To Protect - Acting as Accomplice	1256
850	Neglect To Protect - Acting as Accessory	1260
851	Neglect To Protect - Aiding and Abetting	1264
852	Prohibited Activities - Pattern Of Racketeering Acts	1268
853	Defamation	1276
854	Freedom Of Information	1293
893	CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY REMEDIES FOR CLAIMS	1295
899	<i>Table 899A</i> : Scope Of Remedies Available Under Constitution, Federal Statutes, Common Law	1297
	Table 899B: Scope of Remedies By Claim	1302
901	Table: Remedies Available By Defendant For Each Claim For Relief	1303
902	Order Reversing Conflict Of Law 18 U.S.C. § 2340B	1303
903	Emergency Order Providing Immediate Injunctive Relief	1304
905	Permanent Injunctive Order	1305
907	Order Of Forfeiture	1308
908	Monetary Damages Award	1308
909	Compensatory Damages For Defendants' Individual Injuries To Plaintiffs	1310
910	Compensatory Damages For Defendants' Injuries To Business, Commercial, And Entrepreneurial Property And Rights	1320
911	Compensatory Damages For Defendants' Business, Commercial, And Entrepreneurial Civic Participation Rights And Benefits Injuries	1322
912	Additional Statutory Damages And Remedies - Treble And Other Damages	1322

913	Costs And Damages	1323
914	Punitive Damages	1323
915	Reasonable Costs, Expenses, And Fees	1324
916	Other Relief	1324
917	JURY DEMAND	1324
918	REQUEST FOR APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL	1324
	SIGNATURE	1324

Page total number in footer varies from page to page as the document was printed in increments, not in a single print session. Actual final page total is 1324 pages.

## **Filed herewith:**

Appendix 1: Prior Filings In The District of Columbia, Southern District Of New York

Appendix 2: Abbreviated Timeline: Botched Cover-Up, Threats, and Lethality Attempts

[Intentionally left blank.]